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Our Purpose
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As an investment manager we recognize we have an important part to play in shaping the future of 

all our stakeholders. Therefore, our focus on doing the right thing for our clients, our people and 

community lives at the center of our culture.  

Our inves�ng responsibly for all our stakeholders helps us deliver on a sustainable business model that 

allows us to meet all their aspira�ons. We nurture the values that are at the center of who we are as 

a business. 
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Our business at a glance 

ABC Asset Management is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Atlas Mara Zambia Limited. Atlas Mara 

Zambia offers a range of personal, business and wholesale banking products to Zambian customers. 

Atlas Mara Zambia is the merged en�ty resul�ng from the amalgama�on of African Banking 

Corpora�on Zambia Limited and Finance Bank Zambia PLC on 30th June 2016. 

ABC Holdings Limited is the majority shareholder in Atlas Mara Zambia with 70% shareholding while 

the minority share is held by Atlas Mara Limited with a shareholding of 30%.  

ABC Asset Management is a subsidiary and an investment management company of the bank. It 

manages investment por�olios for both Retail and Corporate Ins�tu�ons. We have over 30 years of 

Fund Management experience and we remain among the pioneers of mutual funds or collec�ve 

investments schemes in Zambia. We currently have over K1 82m worth of funds under management. 

Asset Management: 

We manage investments for ins�tu�ons and private investors throughout the client lifecycle.  Our 

investment philosophy allows us to channel our resources into posi�ve outcomes for our clients.   

We trust that the key to conveying posi�ve outcomes lies in hiring highly talented people who bring a 

diverse range of thoughts and ideas. Our service teams build las�ng rela�onships, which allow us to 

develop a clear view of our clients’ needs and how these may change over �me. By combining these 

client rela�onships with market insights and our strong investment capabili�es, we design tailored 

investment solu�ons. These solu�ons are such that they fit our clients’ needs and are tested to ensure 

that they are fit for purpose. 

Investment Advisory: 

The markets both locally and globally con�nue to chart uncharted straits. Uncertain�es about market 

developments may make investors nervous about their financial future and that of their loved ones. 

That is why in the period under review we did not neglect our clients. We are fully alive to the fact 

that if le� without help most investors are prone to make knee -jerk decisions about their investments 

which may prove costly. 

Therefore, we assisted our clients to navigate market uncertain�es by helping them focus on 

investments that provide an op�mal mix for liquidity, risk and returns on their capital.  

To navigate vola�lity, our Fixed Income and Money Market Funds provided the perfect opportunity 

for investors that were seeking to balance liquidity, risk and above infla�on returns. These funds were 

ac�vely managed and offered a single diversified bond fund product with broad exposure to the 

investment-grade bond market such as government securi�es and corporate bonds. And by their 

nature, they provided a full range of maturi�es, short, intermediate,  and long  term. This helped us 

to preserve value for our clients and delivered posi�ve outcomes for 2020.  

Infrastructure: 

Our opera�onal structure is fully supported by shared services with Atlas Mara Bank. The bank has 

signed a binding service level agreement with ABC Asset Management to provide cri�cal services that 

support the business and include capabili�es across Technology, Opera�ons, Risk, Human Resources, 

Compliance, Legal, Governance and Internal Audit. 
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Phenomenal asset growth despite headwinds!

Managing the Covid-19 Pandemic 

2020 was characterized by a deadly pandemic, the
Corona Virus. The World Health Organiza�on
reports that by the end of the year we had over
75m confirmed cases, with over 1m deaths. For
the most part we all accepted that it was an
extraodinary year and we an�cipate that 2021
will be no different. If there is anything that the
pandemic taught all of us was that, the greatest
gi� we could have given our neighbour was to
distance ourselves and not to expose ourselves
to the risks of the virus. 

As a business, we took all requisite precau�ons
and ensured that all members of staff were
quaran�ned where necessary, staff rota�ons were
done in order to keep physical contact to a
minimum. Addi�onally, other health protocols as
advised by the Ministry of  Health were
implemented to safeguard our staff as well as our
clients. We must thank all our clients for exercising
pa�ence with us during this period and for the
support rendered as we took different measures
to stop the spread of COVID-19.

Our 2020 results for total Funds under Management exceeded our
budget projec�ons as stated at the beginning of the year. Total funds
under Management closed at K182m represen�ng 33% year on year
growth; total gross opera�ng revenue was K29m represen�ng
21% year on year growth.

Suffice to say that the business like any other, felt the effects of a
weak macro-economic environment during the year. This is largely 
a�ributed to the slowed down market ac�vi�es in the first half of the
year as the economy experienced a par�al lockdown with some key
sectors of the economy being adversely impacted by the pandemic.

Chairperson’s Statement
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Our role as asset managers

As one of the largest asset management
companies in the country we have an important
role to play in suppor�ng a broad range of
investors to meet their financial goals. Whether
our clients are pension funds, insurance
companies, or individual investors, we are mindful
of the fact that successfully fulfilling our mandate
in rela�on to the K182 million which we have been
entrusted with, has a direct impact on individuals’
lives.
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Board Chairperson 



Our Systems
 

In the last few statements, we repeatedly made men�on of inves�ng in our systems to allow for 

increased digital interac�ons with our clients. I am happy to announce that having considered 

various op�ons available, the Board finally approved capital expenditure towards the development 

of a new fund management system. This so�ware development is custom wri�en to meet specific 

client requirements and will allow online  a nd mobile access to investors’ statements. We are fully   

confident this will help us respond to our clients’ needs and help us remain differen�ated from the rest 

of the market.  

Our People
 

The market dynamics created need for our people to remain abreast with latest compliance and 

sanc�ons monitoring. The Board supported training for con�nuous professional development in line 

with the Financial Intelligence Centre guidelines.   

2021 Outlook
 

The economic outlook for 2021 appears posi�ve, with news of a possible virus vaccine. However, we 

do not expect a radical shi� in both supply and demand chains in 2021. Most of the factors of 

produc�on will gradually adjust and this will drive a slow and gradual economic recovery both locally 

and globally. It also deserves men�on that both fiscal and monetary policy pronouncements will 

remain leading indicators of economic recovery in 2021. We will con�nue to closely monitor these 

triggers to ensure we are aligned to deliver con�nued stakeholder value through the medium term. 
 

Mrs. Joyce Muwo-Mwansa 

Board Chairperson 

We endeavour to channel capital to companies and government to support them in inves�ng for 

growth and ac�vely engage with the companies in which we invest in rela�on to strategy, risks, 

management successions, governance, and environmental impact. We meet the management of the 

companies that we invest in every year to assess progress in these areas.  

Our business philosophy is anchored on an overarching investment strategy of wealth management 

through value inves�ng and capital preserva�on. We believe that by del ivering for our clients and 

offering them investment capabili�es, we can successfully protect and enhance their capital. We are 

also fully alive to the fact that our responsibili�es cater to a wide range of stakeholders including our 

counterpar�es and suppliers, society as a whole and our employees. We take this responsibility very  

seriously and apply the same standards to the management of our own business as we do to the 

companies in which we invest. 

The Board 

challenges, with differing degrees of success. As a Board we con�nued to rein in on increased 

enterprise risk management controls in order to manage growth in a controlled and sustainable way. 

Hence, we revised investment mandates and increased control rigor via the investment commi�ee. 

This helped support sustainable investments with limited impairments over the period. At the centre 

of our risk oversight we priori�sed capital preserva�on by tapping into strong fundamentals of asset 

and investment choices. We are happy that we delivered on our strategy as evidenced by the 

increased asset growth as well as the total gross opera�ng revenue a�ributed to the unit holders.  

The role of the Board becomes cri�cal at such �mes of market vola�lity as has been seen in 2020. 

Almost everywhere, policymakers struggled to manage enormous economic and public health 
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Surviving the �de of market uncertain�es amid COVID -19 
2020 was an intense and extraodinary year characterized by the COVID-19
pandemic. The ensuing lockdowns catalyzed the most severe economic
contrac�ons both locally and globally. The pandemic intensified Zambia’s
macroeconomic weaknesses. Depressed commodity markets pushed
copper prices down by 14% through May 2020 from $6,175/ton in
January 2020. This later picked up to close the year at $7,764/ton.
The supply chain breakdown in major trading partners such as China
and South Africa nega�vely affected domes�c produc�on and
consump�on. Over the period, local currency (Kwacha) depreciated
since the beginning of the year, increasing external debt servicing
costs and domes�c infla�onary pressures.

Falling revenues and increased COVID-19 related spending
worsened the 2020 fiscal posi�on and deteriora�ng exports
and capital inflows put addi�onal pressure on foreign
exchange reserves. Zambia’s 2020 GDP is es�mated to have
shrunk by 4% the lowest since 1998. Most produc�ve
economic sectors were adversely impacted by the
pandemic. Key sectors that were impacted include tourism,
wholesale, retail trade and manufacturing.

Fund Manager’s Report

Local Equi�es Market

Equi�es market remained bearish over 2020. The Lusaka
Securi�es All Share Index closed nega�ve for 2020 at
-8.6%. Share prices generally fell across most counters on
the market.
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During the year we shi�ed a�en�on to government bonds,
which helped us provide compe��ve risk adjusted returns
whilst closely watching our liquidity demands over the
period. At the core of our investment approach was the need
to grow and sustain our assets within a controlled
environment.

Naviga�ng an economic landscape as outlined above
brought its own unique challenges. It tested our strategies
on delivering posi�ve results for our investors. Despite the
difficult year, we lived true to our mandate of preserving
value and crea�ng wealth for all our clients. In our
strategies we looked for a silver lining amid market turmoil.
We also retained increased control rigor to avoid losses of
investors’ capital. Hence, we created an op�mal asset
alloca�on to drive posi�ve results across risk, return and
liquidity. Total funds under management closed at K182m
represen�ng annual movement of 33% (K137m, 2019).
Gross opera�ng revenue a�ributed to investors was K29
(K24m, 2019) represen�ng an annual growth 21%

Mr.Nicholas Kabaso 

Fund Manager  



Globally, capital markets experienced their own turmoil. Global equity markets suffered their sharpest  

ever drawdown (the MSCI All-Country World Index fell 34% from peak on February 12 to trough on 

March 23), but recovered at a record pace, making new all-�me highs by September.  

We con�nue to observe and watch closely the global equi�es. Going by the current global trends we 

are fully subscribed to equity growth over the medium term and mostly inclined towards digital 

transforma�on, healthcare innova�on and sustainability.  

Consistent Investment Performance 

As a steward of public inves�ble funds, we do not take lightly our role as asset managers. We are alive 

to the fact that trust is earned, and we have consistently sought to deliver excep�onal results year in 

year out for our clients.   

Total Opera�ng Revenue 2018 2019 2020 CAGR 

   Balanced Fund 7,109,133 13,988,959 18,619,562  

   Money Market Fund 2,707,557 5,782,471 2,866,088 

   Equity Fund 741,543 (462,685) (789,550) 

   Gratuity Fund 521,420 710,001 766,846 

   USD Fund 711,642 865,154 1,950,886 

   USD High Yield Fund  1,951,219 868,714 

   ZMW High Yield Fund  1,051,923 4,233,410 

Total Opera�ng Revenue 11,791,295 23,887,042 28,515,956 56% 

 

Total gross opera�ng revenue closed at K29m with a compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) at 56%. 

This was driven mostly by increase in total assets under management as well as increase in interest 

yields over the period.  

Growing Asset under Management  

Our strategy as a business has been to con�nue to set clear water between us and compe��on. At 

the heart of what we do, are the values that define our people and business. We nurture bold ideas 

and people who show innova�on and seek to disrupt the market. Our staff aim at doing everything 

for our clients with unques�onable integrity. This we believe is the reason why our clients want to do 

business with us and con�nue to refer the next person to us. 

We are also cognizant of the fact that there will always be room for improvement. That is why we 

con�nue to look for be�er ways of working and improving our, services, products, processes, and 

procedures to ensure the provision of a superior customer experience. 

Liquidity on the LuSE remained a challenge crea�ng challenges of washing away risks on the por�olios. 

The high and compe�ng market returns on the fixed income instruments nega�vely impacted on 

capital flow to the Equity markets. 

Our investment philosophy for the ABC Equity Fund remains one of growth. We have taken a long -

term growth view for most of the stocks that we have on our por�olio. The silver lining for us is in the 

current low valua�ons of stocks on the market which in some given cases portends a great growth 

opportunity over the medium to long term. 

Global Equi�es Market 
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Offshore Investments  

Inves�ng in Digital Technology  

Growing Trust Through Teferrals

Staff Exists

Our outlook over 2021 is that the economies will con�nue to recover albeit gradually. A
vaccine will be a game changer going forward as the risks of the pandemic con�nue to
ravage most economies. Over the short to medium term,
local fiscal management will remain a challenge in view
of current growth forecast being below policy targets
as outlined in the current na�onal development
plans. Addi�onally, fiscal s�mulus packages will
be necessitated and may bear nega�vely on the
capacity for domes�c debt and could trigger
sustained high cost of capital on the market.

Our 2021 Outlook

Following the increased number of enquiries that have been received from most of our clients, we 

con�nue to review the modali�es of how we may crystallize  investments in global equi�es. We are 

mindful that naviga�ng global equi�es will require specialized skill  sets and infrastructure.  

Currently we are considering launching US denominated global equity funds to help investors retain 

investment value and save on FX vola�li�es that may impact investment valua�ons.  

Discussions with selected offshore fund managers have progressed and we might be closing in on 

accepted and workable structures within the course of 2021. This will be followed by Board and 

regulatory approvals.  

The asset management industry has struggled with technology deficit for years and has clearly fallen 

behind the rate of technological change seen across other sectors.  

As a business we have invested in so�ware acquisi�on which will see us develop bespoke client 

interfaces to improve client experience. We hope this will certainly drive value for our clients in 2021 

and going forward. I have no doubt that any investment in leading digital technology should improve 

the investment experience of our clients, improve investment diagnos�cs for be�er and improved 

returns as well as deliver on opera�onal efficiencies. 

During the year, the business benefited from increased referrals from exis�ng clients. We received 

quite an overwhelming number of referred clients that helped us to appreciate the trust that we retain 

from all our clients. 

We cannot over emphasize the point that inves�ng in mutual funds or collec�ve investment schemes 

remains the best investment op�on available in the market which provides the right safeguards as 

well as increased liquidity. Unit trust offer a saving pla�orm that works!  We encourage all our clients 

to refer as many of their family, acquaintances as well as colleagues through to us.  

During the year Ms. Zangose Mwanza exited the business to pursue other career interests. She had 

served as Client Liaison Officer for over four years and was a licensed investment advisor.  
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Mr.Nicholas Kabaso 

Fund Manager  
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We an�cipate most investors will con�nue to show increased appe�te for the growth funds  with a 

well-adjusted risk criterion such as Balanced Fund. With infla�on s�ll rela�vely high investors will seek 

to maximize on any high yielding investments to help make real returns over their investments.  

Globally, we expect bond markets to start looking up as economies recover. The global equity markets 

will similarly con�nue to outperform at least over the short to medium term, with so much weight 

towards ar�ficial intelligence, healthcare, and sustainability.  
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OUR MEDIUM-TERM STRATEGY   
Our medium-term strategy remains on sustaining growth despite macro-economic headwinds. While 

we seek to outperform stated benchmarks or compe��on, we are con�nuously aligned to the fact 

that our client demand is increasing on outcome-oriented solu�ons, which provide a specific result 

such as income or risk management. We recognize that in all the decisions we take  as a business 

delivering outperformance or achieving a predefined outcome increases value for our clients and 

builds trust in our business. 

In view of the above we try to align our short-term plan to our medium-term commitments. This helps 

us to maintain consistency in our opera�ng model and allow us to remain true to our promise to all 

stakeholders. 

As commi�ed at the last Annual General Mee�ng, we remain commi�ed in delivering on the promises 

of our five-year plans by s�cking to the broad themes that we undertook.  Over the coming period we 

will con�nue to focus on the four main themes as outlined in our plan. 

Rela�onship Management: We remain alert to our commitment of not taking any of our clients for 

granted. In all that we do we aim at keeping our clients top on our agenda and put our clients at the 

center of what and how we do things. Further, we resolve to maintain close partnerships with all our 

clients. This allows us to gain a deeper understanding of their needs.  

A big part of our rela�onship management model will be on increasing our digital touch points and 

interac�ons with all our clients. We believe that future growth of Funds under Management is only 

possible if as a business we con�nue to embrace technology and focused on cost effec�ve distribu�on 

models over the medium term. 

New Products: We introduced new products in 2019 namely the ZMW High Yield Fund, as well as USD 
High Yield Fund. Our focus is on receiving further apprecia�on of various needs of our clients and 
ensuring that we meet their needs through enhanced product profiles that help all our investor meet 
their objec�ves over short, medium, and long term. 

 

2021 STRATEGIC FOCUS AREAS
SUSTAIN GROWTH AGAINST MACRO ECONOMIC HEADWINDS

Leverage Exis�ng Funds under 
Management: Enhance on rela�onship 
model, reac�va�ons of accounts, 
above the line marke�ng etc.

Consolidate Fund Performance: 
Consolidate market performance to 
retain the best yields on the market. 
Enhance our digital footprint.

New Products: Increase market 
outreach for newly launched products 

as well as refresh other exis�ng 
products and launch Educa�on Funds.

Controls: Increase the control rigor on 
the exis�ng investment por�olio to 

ensure that credit losses are kept to 
their minimum, increase on the 

internal control environment and 
Corporate governance.
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Consolidate Fund Performance: Over the medium term we commit to live true to our investment 

philosophy of value inves�ng to preserve investor’s capital.  Therefore, our investment approach 

con�nues to tap into strong fundamentals of asset and investment choices. We are alive to the 

inherent por�olios demands and as a result in all our decisions we aim to op�mize returns whilst 

maintaining unique balance on risks and liquidity. 

In all that we do, sustainability of the funds under management remains top priority. Hence, we 

endeavor to channel capital to companies and governments to support them in inves�ng for growth 

and ac�vely engage with the companies in which we invest in rela�on to strategy, risks, management 

successions, governance, and environmental impact.  

Controls: The Board and the Investment Commi�ee retains increased governance oversight over the 

funds being managed. Further, our management team has increased responsibility in se�ng up and 

maintaining adequate internal controls over financial repor�ng. This provides reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with internal repor�ng financial standards applicable within Zambia  and 

globally. 

In caring for our assignments, we are fully commi�ed to mee�ng the minimum standards as required 

by the securi�es act and ensuring that the relevant corporate governance disclosures are made to the 

investors.  
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RISK MANAGEMENT  

In execu�ng our overall business and opera�ons strategy, several key risks arise that could impact our 

ability to a�ract and retain our clients. By constantly reviewing and tes�ng the efficiencies of our 

product and service offering and delivering good investment perfo rmance, we have the best 

opportunity to be selected by clients and receive addi�onal referrals from our exis�ng clients. A failure 

to achieve these could lead to a decrease in total funds under management. 

Key Risk Controls 
Reputa�onal risk 
This may arise from poor conduct, judgement, or 
risk events due to weaknesses in systems or 
controls. Our reputa�on as a business may be 
impacted by any of our key risks and for Conduct 
and regulatory risks which may materialize. 

 

 
At the center of all the decisions we make we 
consider possibili�es of reputa�onal risks and 
this applies even at the point when we consider 
making any changes to our strategies or 
opera�ng models. 
 
Addi�onal capital investment has been taken to 
upgrade our systems and increase on the 
efficiency of our processes and pla�orms.  

 
Investment performance risk 
There is a risk that por�olios may not meet their 
investment objec�ves or that there is a failure to 
deliver consistent performance, resul�ng in 
clients moving assets away from the por�olio, or 
a failure to a�ract new funds.  

 

 
We have clearly defined investment policies and 
processes that have been designed to help us to 
deliver across different por�olio expecta�ons.  
 
Further, the investment commi�ee sits every 
month to review and assess for any inherent 
risks on the por�olio and decisions are taken 
�meously to allow for increased capital 
preserva�on and maximize on investment 
returns. 
 
Addi�onally, security perfec�on for all 
investment made is an ongoing feature. This is 
usually coupled with increased and regular 
business engagement mee�ngs with various 
issuers to discuss the performance of the 
investee companies. 

 
Product risk 
There is a risk that our product offering is not 
suitably diversified or does not provide access to 
strategies that will help clients to meet their 
objec�ves. There is also the risk that the product 
liquidity is not consistent with the product 
descrip�on, or the redemp�on requirements of 
clients. 

 
Through the investment commi�ee the business 
tracks and assesses the performance of all the 
products through the lifecycle. Any leading 
indicators are assessed, and appropriate 
decisions are taken to reposi�on the products. 
Further, the commi�ee considers and monitors
liquidity on an ongoing basis. 
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The risk that insufficient diversifica�on in 
distribu�on channels, products, clients, markets 
or income streams could impact our business. 

 

Atlas Mara Zambia. We also con�nue to explore 
prospects on the development of strategic 
rela�onships and acquisi�ons to enables further 
diversifica�on of distribu�on channels.  

Financial instrument risk 
We face market, credit, liquidity, and capital 
risks from the instruments we manage as part of 
our Funds under Management. The impact of 
financial instrument risks on our business may 
nega�vely affect our earnings, balance sheet or 
our ability to invest in our business.  

 
Financial risk is limited by the regulatory 
environment. The Securi�es Act of Zambia has 
strict and specific regula�ons as to what 
instruments may and may not be held by the 
unit trust funds.  
 
Each Unit Trust is also governed by a Trust Deed, 
which commits it to a specific investment 
objec�ve.  The Trust Deed’s investment 
objec�ve is further refined into an investment 
policy which requires the fund manager to 
manager the unit trust in accordance with the 
specified policy. As far as possible, compliance 
limits are built into the daily pricing systems and 
processes of the fund manager and are checked 
and reportedly on at least annually. 
 
The Securi�es Exchange Commission (SEC) gives 
ini�al approval for each Unit Trust and reviews 
compliance of the Management of the Unity 
Trust at least annually. Daily checks are 
performed by the independent 
Trustee/Custodian to ensure compliance with 
investment policies and limits specified in the 
respec�ve Trust Deeds and the regula�ons 
determined under the Securi�es Act. 
 
We manage capital and liquidity through Board 
and Investment Commi�ee set limits. We 
monitor our credit and counterparty exposure in 
our regular monthly por�olio review mee�ngs 
held by the Investment Commi�ee and during 
quarterly Board mee�ngs. 
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Business concentra�on risk  We have a wide distribu�on and investment 

channels through the branch network of the 



OUR SERVICE CULTURE

 

Mrs. Michelle M Banda 

Business Development Manager 

Our service culture remains one of the best and we con�nue to refine it with con�nued customer
feedback. The service charter sets a high standard of customer care and service for all our customers, all
the �me and at all our touch points.

As part of our service culture we aim at not taking for
granted any of our clients. That is why we nurture direct
rela�onships with our clients, which allows us to
understand more fully their changing needs, resul�ng in
be�er outcomes and improved client longevity. By
leveraging the wide branch network for Atlas Mara
Zambia, we can serve all our clients wherever they may
be. We glory in this infrastructure as it allows us as a
business to meet all our client’s needs.
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“I am NOT the only Unit

account holder happy

with your team. I hope

they continue on this

path.”MM

What our customers say!

“Thank you very much! I must say we are very impressed with your service. I wish we had more of our
people opera�ng at your level in other sectors of our economy. We also hope your a�tude and
professional service reflects the standards that the Bank aspires to. We are grateful for your outstanding
service. Thank you very much and keep it up.” MM

“Good day, I confirm receipt of the redeemed funds. Thank you very much for the Team’s efficiency.” CC

“Thank you for your prompt assistance. I have received my account details and I have made my ini�al
deposit. You may not know this but I opened this account because of your Facebook posts on how unit
trusts are a very good investment vehicle. Please con�nue with your posts, I am sure many others will be
inspired to do the same, some members of my family are also interested but want to see how mine will
perform. Many-many thanks, keep up with your social media interac�ons.” BM



Mrs. Mwaba M Ngenda, joins the Asset Management Team 

Mrs Ngenda joined the team as the Client Por�olio Manager, she is an experienced investment advisor 

having had a lot of working experience within wealth management. Prior to her joining the team she 

was with Standard Chartered Bank where she served a por�olio of affluent clients within the priority 

banking sec�on of the business. Prior to that she worked with the deVere Group as an Associate 

Wealth Consultant serving investors wishing to invest on the offshore markets.  

She is currently a three-�mes winner of the Bank of Zambia Governor Awards for Financial Literacy. 

She brings to the team a confident drive, proac�ve and commercial business acumen in marke�ng,

sales and project management.  

She describes herself as “mul�-award-winning financial educator, speaker and content creator 

passionate about personal finance development.” 

As a business we are confident of a�rac�ng the right people and its our ambi�on to nurture and retain 

the market’s poten�al through talent. We believe that this helps us in mee�ng all our stakeholders’ 

needs and further assure our clients of the desire to provide a seamless customer experience for all. 
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“A three times
winner of the

Bank of Zambia
Governor
Awards.”
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Enhancing our digital pla�orms 

Mr. Clifford Muzoka, Financial Accountant 
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Following the approval from the Board to invest in cu�ng edge fund management so�ware, the
business started the ini�al phase of developing a bespoke fund management system. Such a bespoke
so�ware applica�on is custom wri�en to meet specific client requirements, makes running a
business easier, more efficient, and removes the restric�ons and frustra�ons associated with off-the-
shelf so�ware. Such so�ware development then differen�ates us from the compe��on with unique
and be�er products and services.

Expected date of launch is May 2021.

There is no doubt that we will once again deliver
the best custom experience for all clients. We
remain aligned to our ongoing obliga�ons of
being the best fund management company on
the market.

We also hope to deliver an efficient investor
communica�on going forward. The new so�ware
being developed will allow us to send emails and
SMS messages to our customers directly.
Investors will be provided with addi�onal
incen�ves of receiving real �me SMS alerts on all
redemp�ons and deposits made to their
investments

Among some key features that the new system
will provide include online access to investor
por�olios, daily performance repor�ng,
increased corporate ac�on ini�ated either by
the Fund Manager or the clients, online
payment processing to the investment accounts
as well as online redemp�on requests. The
system has also been built with increased
enhancements of amending any nominated
beneficiaries of an investment por�olio.

In considering a custom applica�on over off-the-
shelf applica�on the business hopes to create a
design that will be suited to specific business
and clients’ needs. Addi�onally, the business
was mindful of delivering value over costs.

Mr. Clifford Muzoka 

Financial Accountant 
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 
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During the period, we delivered very strong financial results that have maintained over the 

period strong growth trajectory of funds under management. Total Funds under management 

m represen�ng an annual growth of 33%. Total gross opera�ng 

revenues were up by 21% closing in at K29m. Total opera�ng costs were up by 7% favorably 

impacted by cost reduc�on ini�a�ves that were undertaken in the period. Total profit for the 

year was K21m (2019: K17m) up by 24%.  

The growth in Funds under Management reflects the increased investor appe�te for unit 

trusts that offer liquid investment op�ons, allowing investors to easily plan for their financial 

objec�ves. 

 

 

 

Over the past 12 months our investment strategy was on growing total Funds under 

Management within a controlled environment. We sought to remain true to our overarching 

philosophy of value inves�ng by tapping into strong fundamentals of asset and investment 

� Inves�ble Funds

2020 CONSOLIDATED PERFORMANCE 

5,541

� Gross Opera�ng Revenue � Investors

Strong Financial Performance despite headwinds . AuM at K182m up by 33%. Total opera�ng revenues
closed at K29m up by 21%. Current growth momentum points to future poten�al of growth.

5%

CONSOLIDATED FUND PERFORMANCE 2020

Strong close to the year - 33% YTD growth of FuM
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choices, to preserve capital. As such we had to navigate market uncertain�es and create a 

unique mix of asset alloca�on that allowed us to deliver op�mal results across risk, returns 

and liquidity. 

 
 2018 2019 2020 
    

Total Opera�ng Revenue 11,791,295 23,887,042 28,515,956 

   Balanced Fund 7,109,133 13,988,959 18,619,562 

   Money Market Fund 2,707,557 5,782,471 2,866,088 

   Equity Fund 741,543 (462,685) (789,550) 

   Gratuity Fund 521,420 710,001 766,846 

   USD Fund 711,642 865,154 1,950,886 

   USD High Yield Fund  1,951,219 868,714 

   ZMW High Yield Fund  1,051,923 4,233,410 
    

Total Opera�ng Expenses (5,041,841) (6,711,682) (7,651,084) 

   Balanced Fund (2,281,151) (2,720,759) (4,251,546) 

   Money Market Fund (1,490,812) (1,957,526) (1,334,581) 

   Equity Fund (377,491) (397,009) (265,700) 

   Gratuity Fund (157,987) (125,399) (193,376) 

   USD Fund (734,400) (871,090) (737,902) 

   USD High Yield Fund  (479,518) (236,422) 

   ZMW High Yield Fund  (159,498) (631,557) 
    

Profit for the year 6,749,441 17,175,360 20,864,872 

 

Total Expense Ra�os 

The total Fund Expense Ra�o (TFER) is a sum of administra�on and transac�on costs. It is 

expressed as an annualized percentage of the value of the total costs incurred for the por�olio 

that was incurred as expenses rela�ng to the administra�on of the por�olio. A higher TFER 

does not necessarily imply a poor return, nor does a lower TFER imply a good return. The 

current TFER cannot be regarded as an accurate indica�on of future TFER's. 

 

 2018 2019 2020 Average 

Total Fund Expense Ra�o (TFER) 4.7% 4.4% 4.4% 4.5% 

   Balanced Fund 5.9% 3.9% 4.6% 4.8% 

   Money Market Fund 8.2% 8.1% 6.9% 7.7% 

   Equity Fund 4.5% 5.8% 4.7% 5.0% 

   Gratuity Fund 4.8% 3.8% 6.0% 4.9% 

   USD Fund 1.9% 2.2% 1.6% 1.9% 

   USD High Yield Fund N/A 7% 2% 4.4% 

   ZMW High Yield Fund N/A 2% 4% 3.0% 

 

Transac�on Costs are costs rela�ng to the buying and selling of the assets underlying the 

por�olio. TC are a necessary cost in administering the por�olio and impact returns. TC should 
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not be considered in isola�on as returns may be impacted by many other factors over �me 

including market returns, the type of por�olio, and the investment decisions of the 

investment manager. All por�olio returns are net of the Total Fund Expense Ra�o. Hence, 

what clients receive as investment posi�ons is already net of the TFEs. 

ABC UNIT TRUSTS 

Money Market Fund: This is our flagship  unit trust and most stable. It was launched in 2003. 

It offers preserva�on and accessibility over the very short term. The por�olio aims 

at genera�ng a sound level of income and achieve higher returns than a bank savings deposit. 

Further, this fund aims at providing investors with money market income insulated from 

infla�on. 

Investment philosophy: The fund aims at inves�ng in short-term money market instruments. 

The fund invests mainly in cash, deposits, and other money-market instruments. 

What can you use this Fund for? 

•  Ideal vehicle for short-term investments. 

•  Aims to achieve a compe��ve interest rate 

•  Provides immediate liquidity 

•  A�rac�ve alterna�ve to savings and deposit accounts  

•  Suitable for investors who seek capital preserva�on with minimal vola�lity 

Money Market Fund 2018 2019  2020 
    

Total FuM 25,892,363 22,428,966 16,210,137 
    

Gross Revenue 2,707,557 5,782,471 2,866,088 

Total Expenses (1,490,812) (1,957,526) (1,334,581) 

Profit 1,216,745 3,824,945 1,531,507 
    

Net Annualized Return 4% 12% 13% 
    

Drop in total opera�ng revenue in the period under review mostly a�ributed to 
reduc�on in total Funds under Management (FuM) compared to prior year. The decline i n 
FuM was mostly a�ributed to clients switching por�olios to the growth funds under the 
Balanced Fund. Further, note that this fund is benchmarked on annual infla�on and as such 
for the year ended 2020, the fund came below its benchmark as annual infla�on for 2020 
closed at 19.2%. 

 

Balanced Fund: This is our growth fund. It offers steady long-term investment returns and is 

ideal for investors seeking to grow their investments over the medium to long term. It 

balances Capital growth, income genera�on and investment risks. 

The por�olio aims at achieving a high level of fixed and periodic income over a longer period, 

by inves�ng in Fixed Income securi�es such as GRZ Bonds, Treasury Bills, Corporate Bonds 

and money market placements such as Fixed Term Bank Deposits. The Fund aims at giving 

investors regular income over their investment period. 
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Investment philosophy: The main performance objec�ve is inves�ng in longer dated fixed 

income instruments. The fund invests principally in GRZ Bonds, Treasury Bills, Listed 

Corporate Bonds and 364 bank deposits 

What can you use this Fund for? 

•  Provides Capital growth over a long period of �me. 

•  Suitable for investors seeking to invest for their future and that of their children. 

•  Suitable for investors with planned medium to long term expenses i.e educa�on, 

house purchase, motor vehicle purchase, holiday seekers etc. 

•  Suitable to get regular compe��ve returns 

•  Ideal for group savings and re�rement planning 

Very suitable for planned expenditures over the medium to long term. 

Balanced Fund 2018 2019  2020 
    

Total FuM 54,366,772 78,346,941 99,163,131 
    

Gross Revenue 7,109,133 13,989,553 18,619,562 

Total Expenses (2,281,151) (2,720,759) (4,251,546) 

Profit 4,827,982 11,268794 14,368,017 
    

Net Annualized Return 13% 17% 22% 
    

The Balanced Fund is our growth funds and has con�nued to a�ract investors seeking 
growth over the medium to long term. The fund retains stellar annual performance owing 
to con�nued medium to long term asset alloca�on. The fund has a minimum holding period 
of six months and is there benchmarked on a six-month Treasury bill rates. For the period 
under review the fund exceeded its benchmark of 13.6% net yield (gross yield 16%).  

 

Equity Fund: This Fund offers investors with compe��ve and sustainable risk adjusted returns 

over the medium to long term by inves�ng in Lusaka Securi�es Exchange (LuSE) listed 

equi�es. By inves�ng in this fund an investor spreads his investment across the different 

counters that the Fund Manager has picked in the por�olio. Thus, inves�ng in our Equity Fund 

provides cost efficiencies and allows you to balance the risks of your investment. The ABC 

Equity fund is medium to long term, which allows investors to benefit from both share price 

gains and regular dividend payouts. 

Investment philosophy: This Fund is ac�vely managed and invests only in LuSE-listed equi�es. 

Our investment team applies a bo�om up stock picking approach. This is usually driven by 

strong convic�on ideas and a�rac�ve rela�ve valua�ons done on a going basis.  Further, we 

consider such factors as market capitaliza�on and liquidity when construc�ng the por�olio. 

In line with regula�on our stock concentra�on rela�ve to total Equity Fund will not exceed 

75%, while we invest 25% of the por�olio in money markets for liquidity management. This 

gives our investors a compe��ve advantage when in need of liquidity. 

Now the fund has no offshore equity exposure. 

What can you use this Fund for? 
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•  Appropriate for investors seeking long term capital growth by inves�ng in a 

por�olio of ac�vely managed listed equi�es. 

•  The fund is ac�vely managed using proven investment procedures cra�ed and 

perfected over �me by our investment professionals. 

•  Cost effec�ve stock market investment op�ons for beginners  

•  Risk-adjusted returns for those seeking to invest on the Lusaka Securi�es Exchange 

(LuSE) 

Fund Benchmark: Lusaka Securi�es All Share Index (LASI) 

Equity Fund 2018 2019  2020 
    

Total FuM 7,951,330 5,683,649 5,576,983 
    

Gross Revenue 741,543 (446,685) (789,550) 

Total Expenses (377,491) (397,009) (265,700) 

Profit 364,052 (859,693) (1,055,250) 
    

Net Annualized Return 19% -12% -18% 
    

Equity market remained bearish over 2020 with most stock counters falling in prices. The 
market was illiquid for the most part of the year crea�ng unique challenges of washing 
away risks on the por�olio. Further, high fixed income interest yields coupled  with high 
infla�on pressure drove away capital to the money markets as investors were able to obtain 
high yields on government securi�es for less risk than inves�ng in equi�es.  
 
Our strategic goal in managing equi�es remains one of growth. Hence, we con�nue to take 
a medium to long term view of the market whilst ac�vely managing the por�olio.  

 

US Dollar Fund: Thinking of inves�ng your money in US Dollars? Then this fund is there to 

help you invest your money with compe��ve rates of return. This Fund offers preserva�on of 

US Dollar denominated capital and accessibility over the very short term by genera�ng sound 

level of income higher than returns in a US Dollar bank account. 

Investment philosophy: The fund aims to achieve its objec�ve by inves�ng in regulated 

Zambian money market US Dollar denominated securi�es issued by financial and other 

corporate ins�tu�ons. 

What can you use this Fund for? 

•  Ideal vehicle for short-term investments and provides immediate liquidity 

•  Aims to achieve a compe��ve interest rate 

•  A�rac�ve alterna�ve to savings and deposit accounts  

•  Suitable for investors who seek capital preserva�on with minimal vola�lity 

 

For investors that seek to hedge themselves from the FX vola�lity. This fund is ideal 

and will help preserve your purchasing power by affording you compe��ve real 

rates of return. 
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Total FuM 67,034,930 12,562,719 24,122,048 
    

Gross Revenue 711,642 865,154 1,950,886 

Transla�on Gains 1,934,612 4,139,559 6,815,635 

Total Expenses (734,400) (871,090) (737,902) 

Profit 1,911,854 4,133,623 8,028,616 
    

Net Annualized Return 3.2% 3.7% 3.5% 
    

Growth in FuM is a�ributed to both currency conversion as well as increased investor 
appe�te over the period. Note that following the deprecia�on of the Kwacha against most  
of its trading partner currencies, investors opted to increase their USD placements as a way 
of preserving their hard currency investments. 
 
Transla�on gains relate to the gains on the por�olio as a results of FX movement against 
the Kwacha and this is only for repor�ng purposes. Total USD Fund does not in any way 
carry FX Risks as all securi�es under the fund are US Dollar denominated. 

 
ZMW High Yield Fund: This is our recently launched fund that targets high value clients 

chasing government bond yields.  This fund is quite restric�ve in redemp�ons with only one 

allowable redemp�on in a year. It is therefore suitable for most high value clients that want 

to have an ac�vely managed por�olio that seek to mimic the performance of the bond 

market. It provides investors with a much more predictable returns over their investment 

period. It allows investors to assess annually their investment goals and reset their goals 

whenever appropriate. 

Investment philosophy: The fund invests in money markets, treasury bills and government 

bonds. 

What can you use this Fund for? 

•  Ideal vehicle for medium to long term planning. 

•  Provides a high predic�on on returns as funds invested are s�cky over the short to 

medium term. 
 

Ideal for high value clients with mul�ples of K500,000 and above and who seek an ac�ve fund 

manager. 

ZMW High Yield Fund 2018 2019  2020 
    

Total FuM N/A 8,924,197 21,595,020 
    

Gross Revenue N/A 1,051,923 4,233,410 

Total Expenses N/A (159,498) (631,557) 

Profit N/A 892,425 3,601,853 
    

Net Annualized Return N/A 21% 22.5% 
    

The fund was launched in 2019 and has seen grown by 142%. The fund is aimed at mimicking 
the 364 Treasury Bill market by allowing s�cky investments for a minimum holding period 
of 12 months. The fund is such that since its restric�ve in redemp�ons it keeps minimal to 
nil cash on hand. The fund aims at a�rac�ng high value �ckets from both ins�tu�ons as 
well as high affluent clients. 

USD Dollar Fund 2018 2019  2020 
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Transla�on gains relate to the gains on the por�olio as a results of FX movement against 
the Kwacha and this is only for repor�ng purposes. Total USD Fund does not in any way 
carry FX Risks as all securi�es under the fund are US Dollar denominated.  

 

USD High Yield Fund: About the Money Market Fund: This is our recently launched fund 

targe�ng high value clients with s�cky USD investments that is benchmarked on one year 

holding period. The fund allows minimum investments of only $50,000 and similar mul�ples 

going forward. Its minimum holding period is 12 months. The fund is ideal for both high value 

individual clients as well as ins�tu�ons that have USD investments and seek to ac�vely 

manage their investments using a dedicated fund manager. 

Investment philosophy: Invests in regulated Zambian US Dollar denominated money market 

securi�es. 

What can you use this Fund for? 

•  Ideal vehicle high value individual as well as ins�tu�onal clients. 

•  Suitable for investors seeking an ac�vely managed investment por�olio 

manager. 

•  Ideal for s�cky medium to long term USD investments. 

ZMW USD Yield Fund 2018 2019  2020 
    

Total FuM N/A 7,256,741 14,830,210 
    

Gross Revenue N/A 1,951.219 868,714 

Total Transla�on Gains N/A 1,504,039 2,745,389 

Total Expenses  (479,518) (236,422) 

Profit N/A 2,975,740 3,377,680 
    

Net Annualized Return N/A 7.8% 7.2% 
    

The fund was launched in 2019 and has since retained a descent growth in US Dollar Terms. 
Average yields on the fund are about 7%. 
 
Transla�on gains relate to the gains on the por�olio as a results of FX movement against 
the Kwacha and this is only for repor�ng purposes. Total USD Fund does not in any way 
carry FX Risks as all securi�es under the fund are US Dollar denominated.  

Gratuity Fund: About the Gratuity Fund: This fund aims to manage gratuity schemes or group 

savings. Corporate organiza�ons as well as Non-governmental organiza�ons that have 

employees on contract will do well to u�lize this fund. The Fund aims to secure the employees 

against real loss of their gratui�es over their contractual period of work. As Fund Managers 

we appreciate that money today is more than that paid in a years’ �me if not properly 

managed. Therefore, our Gratuity Fund aims to insulate these obliga�ons against infla�onary 

risks but instead create real growth over the period. 
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This also applies to ins�tu�ons that have group savings for their employees this fund comes 

in handy to allow you to manage the real growth of your money over the period. 

Investment philosophy: The fund invests in regulated money market as well as fixed income 

instrument but drawing a unique balance between returns and liquidity management. 

What can you use this Fund for? This fund is ideal for Corporate, Non-governmental 

organiza�ons as well as group savings schemes. 

Gratuity Fund 2018 2019  2020 
    

Total FuM 3,215,841 3,215,841 3,255,115 
    

Gross Revenue 710,001 701,001 766,846 

Total Expenses (125,399) (125,399) (193,376) 

Profit 584,602 584,602 573,470 
    

Net Annualized Return 15% 16% 18% 
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Compounded annual growth of income and profit for the year was 56% and 76% respec�vely. 

The business retains growth over the last three years driven by increase in Funds under 

Management coupled with improved yields over the period. 

Consolidated Financial results 

 2018 2019 2020 CAGR 

Income      

Profit for the Year     

 

28,515,956
20,864,872

23,887,042
17,175,360

13,725,907
6,749,454

56%
76%

I am pleased to introduce the Trustee’s report for 2020, in which we describe the governance
arrangements of the ABC Unit Trust, the opera�on of the Fund Manager and  Custodian and
how the Fund Manager discharged his responsibili�es during the year.

Unit Trusts are governed by a Trust Deed. The
Trustee holds the deposited property upon trust for
the benefit of unit holders. The objec�ve of the
Trust is to provide a means whereby investors can
obtain undivided par�cipa�on in a diversified
por�olio of financially sound assets approved by
the Management Company and the Trustee and
held in custody via the Custodian bank.

TRUSTEE’S REPORT
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The Securi�es Exchange Commission (SEC) gives
ini�al approval for each Unit Trust and reviews
compliance of the Management of the Unit Trust
at least annually, Regular checks are performed by
the independent Trustee/Custodianas well as the
compliance with investment policies and limita�ons
specified in the respec�ve Trust Deeds and the
regula�ons determined under the Securi�es Act.

ABC Unit Trust is an open-ended collec�ve
investment vehicle established by the Trust Deed
whose objec�ve is to act as a formal vehicle for
investors to have their money pooled together and
have professional fund managers invest in securi�es
on their behalf.

Money Market Fund, Equity Fund, Balanced Fund,
US Dollar Fund, USD High Yield Fund, Gratuity Fund
ZMW High Yield Fund. The Unit Trusts are regulated
by the Securi�es and Echange Commission (SEC). 

ABC Unit Trust operates seven (7) different  
por�olios namely. 

Governance and Opera�on of the Unit TrustsGovernance and Opera�on of the Unit Trusts

Dr. Friday Nyambe
Trustee
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Corporate Governance 

The Trustees con�nue to be commi�ed to high standards of corporate governance, which are 

fundamental to discharging their responsibili�es. The Trustees apply integrity, principles of 

good governance and accountability throughout its ac�vi�es. 

The table below shows the months in which the Fund Manager, Trustee and Custodian met 

to review the performance of the ABC Unit Trust and address any key concerns that could 

have been there. 

 Jan Feb Mar May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Trustee √   √   √   √  

Custodian √   √   √   √  

Fund Manager √   √   √   √  

 

Custody of Assets 

The primary role of the Custodian is to maintain possession of investments owned by the ABC 

Unit Trust Fund. The Custodian effects collec�on of dividends and interest earned. The 

Custodian facilitates the collec�on of proceeds from matured securi�es. The func�on of the 

Custodian is to minimize the risk of loss or the� of the Unit Trust Assets. 

The custodian for ABC Unit Trust Fund is Stanbic Bank Zambia Nominees. As confirmed by the 

Custodian’s report, all the investment assets reported in the financial statements of ABC Unit 

Trust Fund for the year ended 31 December 2020 were in custody. 

Gi�s and Dona�ons 

The Trust did not make any dona�ons over the last three years.  

Auditors 

The Unit Trust’s auditors, Messrs. HLB Zambia, have indicated their willingness to con�nue in 

office. A resolu�on proposing their reappointment and authorizing the Trustees to fix their 

remunera�on will be put forward at the next Annual General Mee�ng (AGM). 

 

 

 

AMG Global Trust Limited
 

Trustee 

Date: 10/03/2021 

The custodian further confirmed that there were no outstanding issues with ABC Unit Trust
and in their opinion all necessary reconcilia�ons have been done as at 31 December 2020 to
ensure all assets are held in custody as per the provisions of the SEC guidelines No. 1 of 2016.
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ABC UNIT TRUST FUND

FUND MANAGER'S STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

for the year ended 31 December 2020

a)

b)

c)

d)

Mr Nicholas Kabaso

ABC Investments Services Limited

(Fund Manager)

Date:  10/03/2021

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial

Reporting Standards and the requirements of the  Securities Act of Zambia.

The financial statements which appear on pages 35 to 84 were approved for issue by the Fund Manager,

and signed on their behalf by:

The Fund Managers are also responsible for the ABC Unit Trust's system of internal financial control.

These controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the reliability of the

financial statements and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets, and to

prevent and detect misstatement and loss. Nothing has come to the attention of the Fund Managers to

indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures and systems has

occurred during the year under review. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, since the Fund Managers have

every reason to believe that the ABC Unit Trust has adequate resources in place to continue in operation

for the foreseeable future.

The Securities Act requires the Fund Managers to prepare financial statements for each financial year

that give a true and fair view of the state of the ABC Unit Trust and of the profit or loss for that year. In

preparing these financial statements, the Fund Managers have selected suitable accounting policies and

then applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and

followed the applicable accounting standards. The Fund Managers are responsible for ensuring that the

ABC Unit Trust keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the

financial position of the ABC Unit Trust. The Fund Managers are also responsible for safeguarding the

assets of the ABC Unit Trust and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and

other irregularities.

In accordance with the  Securities Act,  we the Fund Managers of  ABC Unit Trust are of the opinion that:

the statement of financial position is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of the

affairs of the ABC Unit Trust as at 31 December 2020;

the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is drawn up so as to give a true and

fair view of the profit of the ABC Unit Trust for the year ended 31 December 2020; 

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the ABC Unit Trust will be able to pay its debts as and

when they fall due; and
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

TO THE UNIT HOLDERS OF ABC UNIT TRUST FUND

Opinion 

Basis for Opinion 

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matter

Determination of Unit prices

As disclosed on note 6 to the 

financial statements, management 

determines the unit prices of the 

funds based on net assets values 

against oustanding number of units. 

The estimation of these amounts 

involves the use of management 

judgement and accordingly, we 

have considered this as a key audit 

matter.

How the matter was addressed in the audit.

We performed an independent computation of the unit 

prices using the final figures for net assets against 

outstanding number of units as at 31 December 2020 by 

performing the following procedures:

Obtained the valuation of unit participation and agreed to 

ledger; and 

Global in Reach, Local in Touch

2
nd

 floor Saturnia House Plot 6392 Dundza Chisidza Road, Longacres, Lusaka, Zambia.  

( Telephone: +260 211 294441. ( Mobile: +260 978 980558 * E-mail: shuko@accamail.com shuko@hlb.co.zm Website: http://www.hlbi.com

HLB Reliance is an independent member of HLB International. A world-wide network of accounting firms and business advisers HLB International Limited registered

in England No. 2181222 Limited by Guarantee

We have audited the financial statements of ABC Unit Trust Fund ("the Unit Trusts), which comprise the

statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income, statement of changes in Unit Holders Funds and statement of cash flows for the

year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies. 

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Unit

Trusts at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the requirements of the

Securities Act of Zambia.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Unit Trust in accordance

with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' code of ethics for Professional

Accountants (IESBA Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have

fulfilled our other responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in 

our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 

of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

for the year ended 31 December 2020

Fund Managers' responsibilities for the financial statements 

Fund Managers are responsible for overseeing the Unit Trusts' financial reporting.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of financial statements  

●

●

In preparing the financial statements, the Fund Managers are responsible for assessing the Unit Trusts'

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Fund Managers either intend to cease operations

of the Unit Trust, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that

an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements. 

Overview of the scope of the audit

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, design and

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal accounting controls.

The Fund Managers are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with

the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), and for such internal control as the Fund

Managers determine necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ABC UNIT TRUST FUND

Agreed balances and transactions used in the computation 

to amounts already tested and verified that the value of the 

unit participation and unit prices have been derived 

correctly in accordance with The Unit Trust's policy.

We noted that the unit prices computed by The Unit Trust 

using provisional figures were not materially different from 

those prices computed using the final figures.
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●

●

●

Report on other legal requirements

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with Fund Managers regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal accounting

controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Fund Managers with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Section 45 (1) of the Securities Act of Zambia requires that in carrying out our audit, we consider

whether the Unit Trust has kept proper records and registers as required by the Act. In our opinion, the

Unit Trust has maintained proper accounting and other records as required by the Act, so far as it

appears from our examination of these records.

In accordance with Section 45 of the Act and Part III paragraph 18 of the Securities (Accounting and

financial requirements) rules of the Securities Act, we report that in our opinion:

the annual financial statements for the Unit Trust for the year ended 31 December 2019 have been

properly prepared in accordance with these rules.

in the case of the statement of financial position a true and fair view is given of the state of affairs

of the Unit Trust as at the year end. 

in the case of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income a true and fair view is

given of the profit for the year ended.

the Unit Trust has, throughout the financial year, kept proper accounting records in accordance with

the requirements of the rules.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Fund Managers' use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, determine whether a material uncertainty exists related

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Unit Trust's ability to continue as a

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention

in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures

are inadequate, to modify our auditor's opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence

obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.

ABC UNIT TRUST FUND

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

for the year ended 31 December 2020

Evaluate the completeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by the Fund Managers.
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the statement of financial position and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income are in agreement with the Unit Trusts accounting records.

we have obtained all information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge and belief are 

necessary for the purposes of our audit.

the Unit Trust has maintained throughout the year systems to enable identify documents of title, or 

documents evidencing title, to the securities held in the interest for the Unit Holders  in accordance 

with rule 29 of the Securities Act of Zambia (conduct of business) rules.

the Unit Trust has, throughout the year, kept the Unit Holders money  properly segregated in 

accordance with Part IV; 

the Unit Trust was in compliance with the requirements  of rule 29 of Securities (conduct of 

business) rules as at 31 December 2020.

Global in Reach, Local in Touch

for the year ended 31 December 2020

ABC UNIT TRUST FUND

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
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ABC UNIT TRUST FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended  31 December 2020

2020 2019

NOTES ZMW ZMW

Income 

Interest from held to maturity investment 5 28,579,924 24,653,345

Other income 786,957 77,598

Dividends 77,161 435,402

Losses arising from changes in fair value of shares 7 (928,085)        (1,279,303)     

Total operating income 28,515,956    23,887,042    

Operating expenses

Management fees Sch I (3,874,203)     (3,990,286)     

Administrative expenses Sch I (3,300,086)     (2,294,838)     

Custodian fees Sch I (257,047)        (213,105)        

Trustee fees Sch I (219,748)        (213,454)        

Total operating expenses (7,651,084)     (6,711,682)     

Profit for the year 20,864,872    17,175,360    

Other comprehensive income

Translation gains 9,561,021 5,643,598

Total comprehensive income for the year 30,425,893    22,818,958    
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ABC UNIT TRUST FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2020

NOTES 2020 2019

ZMW ZMW

ASSETS

Held to maturity investments 6 169,498,824 129,347,901

Bank and cash balances 8 5,867,065 1,938,686

Equity investments 7 5,387,212 4,348,770

Accounts receivable 9 1,388,473 947,184

Total Assets 182,141,574 136,582,541

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 

Unit holders  fund 

Unit holders investment 160,662,853 135,117,746

Liabilities

Deferred income 11 20,027,603 12,710

Accounts payable 10 1,451,118 1,452,085

21,478,721 1,464,795

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 182,141,574 136,582,541

Mr Nicholas Kabaso Mrs Joyce Muwo-Mwansa

ABC Investments Services Limited ABC Investments Services Limited

(Fund Manager) (Chairperson)

Date: 10/03/2021 Date: 10/03/2020

The financial statements on pages 35 to 84 were approved by 

the Fund Managers on 10/03/2021 and were signed on its 

behalf by:
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ABC UNIT TRUST FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN THE UNIT HOLDERS FUND 

for the year ended  31 December 2020

Units Retained 

value earnings Total

ZMW ZMW ZMW

Balance at 1 January 2019 64,934,927 15,969,945 80,904,872

Issue of units during the year 194,286,505 -                    194,286,505

Redemption of units during the 

year (162,892,589)      -                    (162,892,589)       

Profit for the year -                       17,175,360 17,175,360

Translation gains -                       5,643,598 5,643,598

Balance at 31 December 2019 96,328,843 38,788,903 135,117,746

Issue of units during the year 133,764,496     -                    133,764,496      

Redemption of units during the year (138,645,282)    -                    (138,645,282)     

Profit for the year -                       20,864,872   20,864,872        

Translation gains -                       9,561,021     9,561,021          

Balance at 31 December 2020 91,448,057       69,214,796   160,662,853      

37



2020  ANNUAL REPORT
ABC UNIT TRUST FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended  31 December 2020

2020 2019

NOTES ZMW ZMW

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 20,864,872 17,175,360

Items not involving movement of funds:

Changes in fair value of shares 7 928,085 1,279,303

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital 21,792,957         18,454,663       

Movements in working capital:

(Increase)/Decrease in account receivables balances 9 (441,289)             1,220,836

(Decrease) in accounts payables 10 (967)                    (76,198,081)      

Net cash generated/(used in) from operations 21,350,701         (56,522,582)      

Investing activities

Increase in deferred income 11 20,014,893 12,710             

Transalation gains 9,561,021 5,643,598         

Increase in held to maturity investments 6 (40,150,923)        (9,313,708)       

Proceeds from sale of equity 7 683,473 221,642            

Investment in equity 7 (2,650,000)          (48,339)            

Net cash used in investing activities (12,541,536)        (3,484,098)       

 

Financing activities

Issue of units 133,764,496       194,286,505     

Redemption of units (138,645,282)      (162,892,589)    

Net cash (used in)/ generted from financing activities (4,880,786)          31,393,916       

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,928,379           (28,612,763)      

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,938,686           30,551,449       

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5,867,065           1,938,686         

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:

Bank and cash balances 8 5,867,065           1,938,686         
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ABC MONEY MARKET FUND

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended  31 December 2020

2020 2019

ZMW ZMW

Income 

Interest from held to maturity investments 2,866,088 5,782,471        

2,866,088          5,782,471        

Operating expenses

Management fees (915,160)            (1,235,999)       

Administrative expenses (378,590)            (638,296)          

Custodian fees (21,516)              (40,462)           

Trustee fees (19,315)              (42,768)           

Total operating expenses (1,334,581)         (1,957,526)       

Profit for the year 1,531,507        3,824,946     

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,531,507 3,824,946
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ABC MONEY MARKET FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2020

2020 2019

ZMW ZMW

ASSETS

Held to maturity investments 14,945,751 21,868,513

Bank and cash balances 745,110 297,296

Interfund receivable 519,276 262,564

Accounts receivable - 593

Total Assets 16,210,137 22,428,966

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 

Unit holders fund 

Income fund unit holders investment 12,454,848          21,254,781    

Liabilities

Deferred income 2,727,690 -

Accounts payable 1,027,599 973,758

Interfund accounts payable - 200,427

3,755,289            1,174,185      

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 16,210,137 22,428,966
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ABC MONEY MARKET FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS

for the year ended  31 December 2020

Units Retained 

value earnings Total

K K K

Balance at 1 January 2019 10,404,733        939,062          11,343,795      

Issue of units during the year 

Redemption of units during the year 42,156,762        -                     42,156,762      

Profit for the year (36,070,721)       -                     (36,070,721)     

- 3,824,945       3,824,945        

Balance at 31 December 2019 16,490,774      4,764,007      21,254,781    

Issue of units during the year - 19,286,577      - - - 19,286,577    

Redemption of units during the year - (29,618,016)     - - - (29,618,016)   

Profit for the year - -- 1,531,507      - 1,531,507      

Balance at 31 December 2020         6,159,334       6,295,514     12,454,848 
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ABC MONEY MARKET FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended  31 December 2020

2020 2019

Operating activities ZMW ZMW

Profit for the year 1,531,507 3,824,946        

Items not involving movement of funds:

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital 1,531,507            3,824,946        

Movements in working capital:

Increase in interfund receivables (256,712)              (262,564)         

(Decrease)/Increase in interfund accounts payable (200,427)              200,427          

Decrease in account receivables 593                      1,003,192        

Increase/(Decrease) in accounts payables 53,841                 (13,574,810)     

Net cash  generated/ (used in) from operations 3,856,492            (8,808,809)      

Investing activities

Increase in deferred income 2,727,690            -                     

Decrease in Held to Maturity investments 6,922,761            2,534,619        

Net cash generted from investing activities 9,650,451            2,534,619        
 

Financing activities

Issue of units 19,286,577 42,156,762      

Redemption of units (29,618,016)         (36,070,721)     

Net cash (used in)/ generated  from financing activities (10,331,439)         6,086,041        

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 447,814 (188,150)         

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 297,296               485,446          

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 745,110               297,296          

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:

Bank and cash balances 745,110               297,296          
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ABC EQUITY FUND

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019

Income K K

Dividends received 77,161 435,402

Interest from held to maturity investments 61,107 381,216

Other income 267                   -                  

Loss from changes in fair value of shares (928,085)           (1,279,303)    

Total income (789,550)           (462,685)       

Operating expenses

Management fees (219,707)           (292,624)       

Administrative expenses (27,417)             (84,843)        

Custodian fees (10,014)             (9,401)          

Trustee fees (8,562)               (10,141)        

Total operating expenses (265,700)           (397,009)       

 Loss for the year (1,055,250)        (859,693)       

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,055,250)        (859,693)       
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ABC EQUITY FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2020

2020 2019

K K

ASSETS

Equity investments 5,387,212        4,348,770    

Accounts receivables 99,253             108,949       

Held to maturity investments 68,782             1,211,588    

Bank and cash balances 21,736             14,341         

Total Assets 5,576,983        5,683,649    

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 

Unit holders fund 

Equity fund unit holders investment 4,362,525        5,334,588    

Liabilities

Interfund accounts payable 1,167,043        306,152       

Other payables 24,184             42,909         

Deferred income 23,231 -

1,214,458        349,061       

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 5,576,983        5,683,649    
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ABC EQUITY FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS

for the year ended  31 December 2020

Units Retained 

value earnings Total

K K K

Balance at 1 January 2019 6,821,600 701,915 7,523,516

Issue of units during the year 176,860 - 176,860

Redemption of units during the year (1,506,094)    -                   (1,506,094)      

Loss for the year -               (859,693)       (859,693)         

Balance at 31 December 2019     5,492,366       (157,778)       5,334,588 

Issue of units during the year 2,682,161   -                   2,682,161      

Redemption of units during the year (2,598,974)  -                   (2,598,974)     

Loss for the year -                   (1,055,250)   (1,055,250)     

Balance at 31 December 2020     5,575,553    (1,213,028)       4,362,525 
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ABC EQUITY FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended  31 December 2020

2020 2019

ZMW ZMW

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year (1,055,250)   (859,693)       

Items not involving movement of funds:

-                   

Loss from changes in value of the held to maturity investments 928,085        1,279,303     

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital (127,164)       419,610        

Movements in working capital 

Decrease/(Increase) in  accounts receivable 9,696            (21,271)         

Increase/(Decrease) in inter-fund accounts payables 860,891 (384,905)       

(Decrease)/Increase in accounts payable (18,725)         306,152        

Net cash generated from  operations 724,698        319,586        

Investing activities

Proceeds from sale of equity 7 683,473 221,642        

Investment in equity 7 (2,650,000)   (48,339)         

Decrease in Held to Maturity Investments 1,142,807 188,463        

Increase in deferred income 23,231 -                   

Net cash generated from investing activities (800,490)       361,765        

Financing activities

Issue of units 2,682,161 176,860        

Redemption of units (2,598,974)   (1,506,094)    

Net cash generated/ (used in) from financing activities 83,187          (1,329,234)    

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 7,395            (647,884)       

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 14,341          662,225        

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 21,736          14,341          

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:

Bank and cash balances 21,736          14,341          
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ABC BALANCED FUND

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended  31 December 2020

2020 2019

ZMW ZMW

Income 

Interest from held to maturity investments 18,284,497 13,975,507    

Other Income 335,065 14,046           

Total income 18,619,562            13,989,553    

Operating expenses

Administrative expenses (2,048,131)            (730,284)        

Management fees (1,952,897)            (1,784,663)     

Trustee fees (116,000)                (103,598)        

Custodian fees (134,517)                (102,214)        

Total operating expenses (4,251,546)            (2,720,759)     

Profit for the year 14,368,017            11,268,794    

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 14,368,017 11,268,794
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ABC BALANCED FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2020

2020 2019

K K

ASSETS

Held to maturity investments 94,572,265 76,519,555

Bank and cash balances 3,682,275 678,766

Other receivable 908,591 1,148,620

Total assets 99,163,131 78,346,941

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 

Unit holders  fund 

Balanced fund unit holders investment 84,513,528 78,015,664

Liabilities

Deferred income 14,428,322 -                  

Accounts payable 221,281 331,277

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 99,163,131 78,346,941
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ABC BALANCED FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS

for the year ended  31 December 2020

Units Retained 

value earnings Total

K K K

Balance at 31 December 2019        35,962,115        11,907,754       47,869,869 

Issue of units 65,621,258       -                      65,621,258      

Redemption of units (46,744,257)      -                      (46,744,257)     

Profit for the year -                      11,268,794       11,268,794      

Balance at 31 December 2019       54,839,116       23,176,548     78,015,664 

Issue of units 59,169,673     -                      59,169,673    

Redemption of units (67,039,826)    -                      (67,039,826)   

Profit for the year -                      14,368,017     14,368,017    

Balance at 31 December 2020       46,968,963       37,544,565     84,513,528 
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ABC BALANCED FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended  31 December 2020

2020 2019

K K

Operating activities

Profit for the year 14,368,017 11,268,794

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital 14,368,017 11,268,794

Movements in working capital:

Decrease in sundry payable (109,996)                (6,165,626)      

Decrease/(Increase) in other accounts receivables 240,030 (1,148,620)      

Decrease in Accounts receivable - 1,074,921

Net cash generated from  operations 14,498,051 5,029,469

Investing activities

Increase in deffered income 14,428,322 -                 

Increase in held to Maturity investments (18,052,710)           (23,910,995)    

Net cash used in investing activities (3,624,389)             (23,910,995)    

Financing activities

Issue of units 59,169,673 65,621,258     

Redemption of units (67,039,826)           (46,744,257)    

Net cash used in/ generated from financing activities (7,870,153)             18,877,001     

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,003,509              (4,525)            

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the  year 678,766 683,291

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,682,275 678,766

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:

Bank and cash balances 3,682,275 678,766
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ABC US DOLLAR FUND

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended  31 December 2020

2020 2019

Income ZMW ZMW

Interest from held to maturity investment 1,499,261 865,154

Other income 451,625 -                

1,950,886 865,154

Operating expenses

Administrative expenses (373,164)      (656,548)    

Management fees (296,971)      (178,441)    

Custodian fees (37,602)        (19,692)      

Trustee fees (30,165)        (16,409)      

Total operating expenses (737,902)      (871,090)    

Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,212,984    (5,936)        

Other comprehensive income

Translation gains 6,815,632 4,139,559

Total comprehensive income for the year 8,028,616 4,133,623
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ABC US DOLLAR FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2020

2020 2019

ASSETS ZMW ZMW

Held to maturity investments 22,134,501 11,304,746

Interfund accounts receivable 1,164,075 7                 

Bank and cash balances 823,473 1,257,966

Total assets 24,122,048 12,562,719

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 

Unit holders fund 

USD Dollar fund unit holders investment 24,054,501 12,505,252

Liabilities

Accounts payable 67,546 57,466

67,546 57,466

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 24,122,048 12,562,719
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ABC US DOLLAR FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS

for the year ended  31 December 2020

Units Retained 

value earnings Total

K K K

Balance at 31 December 2019 9,801,669             1,135,763              10,937,432           

Issue of units 59,831,490           -                            59,831,490           

Redemption of units (62,397,292)          -                            (62,397,292)          

Loss for the year -                          (5,936)                   (5,936)                  

Translation gains -                          4,139,559 4,139,559

Balance at 31 December 2019 7,235,866           1,129,827             12,505,252         

Issue of units 14,156,551         -                           14,156,551         

Redemption of units (10,635,918)        -                           (10,635,918)        

Profit for the year -                          1,212,984             1,212,984           

Translation gains -                          6,815,632             6,815,632           

Balance at 31 December 2020 10,756,499         9,158,444             24,054,501         
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2020 2019

ZMW ZMW

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,212,984         (5,936)              

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital 1,212,984         (5,936)              

Movements in working capital 

Increase/(Decrease) in Interfund accounts receivable (1,164,068)        619                   

Increase/(Decrease)in accounts payable 10,080              (56,040,032)      

Net cash generated from / (used in) operations 58,996              (56,045,349)      

Investing activities

Increase/(Decrease) in held to maturity investments (10,829,755)      27,676,052       

Translation gains 6,815,632 4,139,559

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (4,014,123)        31,815,611       

Financing activities

Redemption of units 14,156,551       59,831,490       

Issues of units (10,635,918)      (62,397,292)      

Net cash generated from/(used in)  financing activities 3,520,633         (2,565,802)        

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (434,493)           (26,795,540)      

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,257,966 28,053,506

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 823,473 1,257,966

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:

Bank and cash balances 823,473             1,257,966         
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2020 2019

K K

Income 

Interest from held to maturity investments 868,714 1,951,219

Total income 868,714             1,951,219    

Operating expenses

Management fees (103,519)           (274,122)     

Administrative expenses (103,124)           (149,318)     

Custodian fees (16,487)             (28,298)       

Trustee fees (13,293)             (27,781)       

Total operating expenses (236,422)           (479,518)     

Profit for the year 632,291             1,471,701    

Other comprehensive income

Translation gains 2,745,389 1,504,039

Total comprehensive income for the year 3,377,680 2,975,740
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2020 2019

ZMW ZMW

ASSETS

Held to maturity investments 13,540,989 6,396,343

Other receivables 1,289,221 860,397

Total Assets 14,830,210     7,256,741    

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 

Unit holders fund 

USD High Yeild fund unit holders 13,633,835     6,077,388    

Liabilities

Interfund accounts payable balances 1,167,787      755,954       

Accounts payable 28,588            35,682        

Bank overdraft -                     387,716       

1,196,375      1,179,352    

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 14,830,210     7,256,741    
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Units Retained 

value earnings Total

ZMW ZMW ZMW

Balance at 1 January 2019 -                     -                   -                    

Issue of units 13,622,386      -                   13,622,386     

Redemption of units (10,520,738)     -                   (10,520,738)    

Profit for the year -                     1,471,701     1,471,701       

Translation gains -                     1,504,039 1,504,039

Balance at 31 December 2019 3,101,649        2,975,740     6,077,388       

Issue of units 9,139,746      -                   9,139,746     

Redemption of units (4,960,980)     -                   (4,960,980)    

Profit for the year -                     632,291       632,291         

Translation gains -                     2,745,389    2,745,389     

Balance at 31 December 2020 7,280,415      6,353,420    13,633,835    
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2020 2019

ZMW ZMW

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 632,291         1,471,701        

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital 632,291         1,471,701        

Movements in working capital 

Increase in accounts receivable (428,824)        (860,397)          

(Decrease)/Increase in accounts payable (7,094)            35,682            

Increase in interfund accounts payable 411,833         755,954           

Net cash generated from operations 608,207         1,402,940        

Investing activities

Increase in held to Maturity investments (7,144,645)     (6,396,343)       

Translation gains 2,745,389      1,504,039        

Net cash used in investing activities (4,399,256)     (4,892,304)       

Financing activities

Issue of units during the year 9,139,746      13,622,386      

Redemption of units during the year (4,960,980)     (10,520,738)     

Net cash generated from financing activities 4,178,766      3,101,649        

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 387,716         (387,716)          

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (387,716)        -                     

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year -                     (387,716)          

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:

Bank overdraft -                     (387,716)          
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2020 2019

ZMW ZMW

Income 

Interest from held to maturity investments 766,846 710,001

Total income 766,846 710,001

Operating expenses

Management fees (107,572)         (109,562)    

Administrative expenses (75,031)           (5,601)        

Custodian fees (5,547)             (4,951)        

Trustee fees (5,226)             (5,285)        

Total operating expenses (193,376)         (125,399)    

Profit for the year 573,470 584,602

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 573,470 584,602
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2020 2019

ZMW ZMW

ASSETS

Held to maturity investments 2,802,380 3,173,099

Bank and cash balances 452,735 42,742

Total assets 3,255,115 3,215,841

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 

Unit holders fund 

Gratuity fund unit holders investment 3,241,774 3,200,870

Liabilities

Accounts payable 13,341 14,971

13,341 14,971

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 3,255,115 3,215,841
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Units Retained 

value earnings Total

K K K

Balance at 1 January 2019 1,944,810     1,285,451     3,230,261     

Issue of units 2,967,401     -                   2,967,401     

Redemption of units (3,581,394)    -                   (3,581,394)    

Profit for the year -                   584,602        584,602        

Balance at 31 December 2019 1,330,816    1,870,053    3,200,870    

Issue of units 5,669,131    -                   5,669,131    

Redemption of units (6,201,697)   -                   (6,201,697)   

Profit for the year -                   573,470       573,470       

Balance at 31 December 2020 798,250 2,443,523 3,241,774
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2020 2019

ZMW ZMW

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 573,470           584,602         

Items not involving movement of funds:

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital 573,470           584,602         

Movements in working capital:

Decrease in account receivables -                       1,009            

Decrease in accounts payable (1,630)              (64,411)         

Net cash generated from operating activities 571,840           521,200         

Investing activities

Decrease/(Increase) in held to maturity investments 370,718           (531,446)       

Net cash generated from/ (used in)  investing activities 370,718           (531,446)       

Financing activities

Issue of units 5,669,131        2,967,401      

Redemption of units (6,201,697)       (3,581,394)    

Net cash used in financing activities (532,566)          (613,993)       

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 409,993           (624,240)       

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 42,742             666,982         

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 452,735           42,742          

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:

Bank and cash balances 452,735           42,742          
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2020 2019

ZMW ZMW

Income 

Interest from held to maturity investments 4,148,348    1,051,923    

Other income 85,062         -                  

Total income 4,233,410    1,051,923    

Operating expenses

Administrative expenses (294,630)      (29,064)        

Management fees (278,376)      (114,874)      

Custodian fees (31,363)        (8,089)          

Trustee fees (27,188)        (7,471)          

Total operating expenses (631,557)      (159,498)      

Profit for the year 3,601,853    892,425       

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 3,601,853 892,425
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 2020  2019 

ASSETS ZMW ZMW

Held to maturity investments 21,434,156   8,874,057    

Bank and cash balance 141,736        35,290         

Other receivables 19,128          14,850         

21,595,020   8,924,197    

UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS AND LIABILITIES

Unit holders funds

ZMW High Yield fund unit holders investment 18,401,841   8,730,694    

Liabilities

Deferred income 2,848,361     -                  

Accounts payable 344,818        193,503       

3,193,179     193,503       

Total unit holders funds and liabilities 21,595,020   8,924,197    
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS 

for the year ended  31 December 2020

Units Retained 

value earnings Total

K K K

Balance at 1 January 2019 -                         -                   -                     

Issue of units 9,910,361 -                   9,910,361

Profit for the year (2,072,092)           -                   (2,072,092)       

Profit for the year -                         892,425 892,425           

Balance at 31 December 2019 7,838,269          892,425       8,730,694      

Issue of units 23,660,656        -                   23,660,656     

Redemption of units (17,591,362)       -                   (17,591,362)   

Profit for the year -                         3,601,853    3,601,853      

Balance at 31 December 2020 13,907,564        4,494,278 18,401,841
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2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities K K

Profit for the year 3,601,853       892,425        

Operating cashflows before movement in working capital 3,601,853       892,425        

Movements in working capital:

Decrease in other accounts receivable (4,278)             (14,850)         

Increase in accounts payable 151,315          193,503        

Net cash generated from operating activities 3,748,890       1,071,078     

Investing activities

Increase in deffered income 2,848,361 -               

Increase in held to Maturity investments (12,560,099)    (8,874,057)    

Net cash used in investing activities (9,711,738)      (8,874,057)    

Financing activities

Issue of units 23,660,656 9,910,361

Receipts from sale of investments (17,591,362)    (2,072,093)    

Net cash generated from financing activities 6,069,294       7,838,268     

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 106,446          35,290          

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 35,290            -                   

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 141,736          35,290          

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:

Bank and cash balances 141,736          35,290          
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ABC Unit Trust Fund

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2020

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

2.

2.1

h

Effective date 

1 January 2023

The ABC Unit Trust has adopted the amendments included in Amendments to References to the Conceptual

Framework in IFRS Standards for the first time in the current year. The amendments include consequential

amendments to affected Standards so that they refer to the new Framework. Not all amendments, however,

update those pronouncements with regard to references to and

quotes from the Framework so that they refer to the revised Conceptual Framework.

ABC Unit Trust Fund (the "Unit Trust") is an open ended collective investment vehicle established by a Trust

Deed, to act as a formal vehicle for investors to have their monies pooled together and have professional

fund managers invest in securities on their behalf. The address of the Fund Managers, registered office and

principal place of business are disclosed in the corporate information page. 

SUMMARY OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES RELEVANT TO ABC UNIT TRUST

New and revised IFRSs in issue that are not yet effective  

The Unit Trust applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual reporting

period commencing 1 January 2020;

2.1.2 Amendments to References to the  Conceptual Framework in IFRS  Standards

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2020, but do not have an impact on

the financial statements of the Unit Trust. The Unit Trust has not early adopted any standards,

interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective. 

The Standards which are amended are IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 38, IFRIC

12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Unit Trust has not applied the following new

and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Title of IFRS Brief overview of the changes 

Amendments to IAS 

1: Classification of 

Liabilities as 

Current or Non-

current

The amendments to IAS 1 affect only the presentation of liabilities as

current or non-current in the statement of financial position and not

the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability, income or

expenses, or the information disclosed about those items.

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current

or non-current is based on rights that are in existence at the end of the

reporting period, specify that classification is unaffected by

expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer

settlement of a liability, explain that rights are in existence if

covenants are complied with at the end of the reporting period, and

introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement

refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments,

other assets or services.
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for the year ended 31 December 2020

2.

2.2 New and amended standards and interpretations  (continued)

Effective date 

1 January 2022

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY ABC UNIT TRUST

3.1 Basis of financial statements preparation

3.2 Revenue recognition

Interest income

the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

the amortised cost of the financial liability.

Fees and commission income

Brief overview of the changes 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The financial statements are

presented in Zambian Kwacha (“K”) rounded to the nearest kwacha. The financial statements were approved

for issue by the Trustees.

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis which assumes the ABC Unit Trust

will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts

through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount

of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for

financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is

calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is

no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset

or financial liability are included in the effective interest rate.

Other fees and commission income – including investment management fees, placement fees and syndication

fees – is recognised as the related services are performed. 

Other fees and commission expenses relate mainly to transaction and service fees, which are expensed as the

services are received.

Amendments to IAS 

37 – Onerous 

Contracts—Cost of 

Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract

comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that

relate directly to a contract consist of both the incremental costs of

fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour or materials)

and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling

contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation

charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling

the contract).

SUMMARY OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE ABC UNIT TRUST 

Title of IFRS
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE ABC UNIT TRUST (CONTINUED)

3.3 Provisions 

3.4 Foreign currencies 

3.5 Financial instruments 

a) Financial asset

h

h

h

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 

or equity instrument of another entity. Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised 

when they are originated, all other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the ABC Unit 

Trust’s statement of financial position when the ABC Unit Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions 

of the financial instrument.

Amortised cost  ̶  debt instruments

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) with recycling of cumulative 

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) - Equity instruments.

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified in four categories: 

Dividend income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, upon

declaration by the share issuer. 

Provisions are recognised when ABC Unit Trust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of

past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the

amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Where there are

a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined

by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an

outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to 

settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the 

present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 

risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as 

interest expense.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of ABC Unit Trust 

companies at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency 

at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair 

value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair 

value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency 

are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally 

recognised in profit or loss and presented within finance costs.

Dividend income

ABC Unit Trust Fund

for the year ended 31 December 2020

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. 

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within 

the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE ABC UNIT TRUST (CONTINUED)

3.5 Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Amortised cost 

h

h

(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

h

h

a) Financial asset

(iii) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

h

i).

ii).

iii).

For debt instruments at FVOCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or 

reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial 

assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon 

derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss. 

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial 

recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest 

method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss 

allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before 

adjusting for any loss allowance.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 

designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and 

are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, 

modified or impaired.

ABC Unit Trust's financial assets at amortised cost includes corporate bonds, fixed deposits and government 

securities. 

ABC Unit Trust measures debt instruments at FVOCI if both of the following conditions are met:  

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect 

contractual cash flows and selling; and 

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ABC Unit Trust Fund

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

for the year ended 31 December 2020

ABC Unit Trust may make the following irrevocable election at initial recognition of a financial asset:

present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if it is 

not held for trading. A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that ABC 

Unit Trust manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term 

profit-taking; or

it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a 

designated and effective hedging instrument).
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ABC Unit Trust Fund

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2020

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY ABC UNIT TRUST (CONTINUED)

3.5 Financial instruments (continued)

a) Financial asset

(iii) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

h

(iii) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) (continued)

h

h

b) Derecognition of financial assets 

h
h

c) Impairment of financial assets

3.5 Financial instruments (continued)

c) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

h

h

designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if

doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (see above)

are measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset ’s

carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative

gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which ABC Unit Trust has elected on

initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the

investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.

ABC Unit Trust recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on investments in debt

instruments that are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI. The amount of expected credit losses is

updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective

financial instrument.

ABC Unit Trust measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following,

which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the

expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the

expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that

is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after

the reporting date.

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless ABC Unit Trust designates an

equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a

business combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria (see above) are

classified as at FVTPL

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of ABC Unit Trust of similar

financial assets) is primarily derecognised when: 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.
ABC Unit Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset and/or has

transferred control of the asset.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY ABC UNIT TRUST (CONTINUED)

h

h

Credit impaired financial assets 

h

h

h

h It is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

h

Write off policy 

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses 

ABC Unit Trust writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe

financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed

under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the

amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be

subject to enforcement activities under ABC Unit Trust’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal

advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

ABC Unit Trust Fund

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2020

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of

all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the

contract and the cash flows that the ABC Unit Trust expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective

interest rate of the financial asset.

If ABC Unit Trust has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime

ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for

lifetime ECL are no longer met, the ABC UNit Trust measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to

12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which simplified approach was used.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial

recognition and when estimating ECLs, ABC UNit Trust considers reasonable and supportable information that

is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative

information and analysis, based on the ABC Unit Trust ’s historical experience and informed credit

assessment including forward-looking information.

ABC Unit Trust assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than

30 days past due. ABC Unit Trust considers a financial asset to be in default when:

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to ABC Unit Trust in full, without recourse by the 

the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

ABC Unit Trust considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of

‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not

available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has

a strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

At each reporting date, the ABC Unit Trust assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and

debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events

that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

A breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

The restructuring of a loan or advance that theABC Unit Trust would not consider otherwise;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2020

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY ABC UNIT TRUST  (continued)

3.5 Financial instruments (continued)

d) Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Subsequent measurement 

h Fair value through profit or loss 

3.5 Financial instruments (continued)

e) Derecognition of financial liabilities and equity instrument

ABC Unit Trust recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with

a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for

investments in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in

other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce

the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective

hedge, as appropriate.   

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.  

ABC Unit Trust’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank

overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments. 

The subsequent measurement of the financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and

financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial

liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the

near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by ABC Unit Trust

that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated

embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective

hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are

designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. ABC Unit

Trust has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

ABC Unit Trust derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the ABC Unit Trust's obligations are

discharged, cancelled or they expire. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the

same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,

such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition

of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit

or loss.  

2020  ANNUAL REPORT

74



4. KEY ACCOUTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

4.1 Key accounting estimates 

Calculation of expected credit loss allowance

ABC Unit Trust Fund

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2020

The preparation of ABC Unit Trust’s financial statements requires the Fund Managers to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty

about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the

carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

The provision matrix is initially based on ABC Unit Trust’s historical observed default rates. ABC Unit Trust

will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For

instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the

next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical

default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and

changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.   

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions

and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of

forecast economic conditions. ABC Unit Trust ’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic

conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019

ZMW ZMW

5. Interest income

Fixed term deposits 18,396,717 18,532,264

Government Bonds 7,273,073 3,203,042

Corporate Bonds 2,883,085 2,867,349

Bank 27,049 50,690

28,579,924 24,653,345

6. Held to maturity investments 

Fixed term deposits 85,386,345 102,249,012

Corporate bond 13,775,726   15,183,424  

Government securities 72,964,421   13,760,477  

172,126,492 131,192,913 

Allowance for credit looses (2,627,668)   (1,845,012)   

169,498,824 129,347,901

7. Investment in equity securities 

Opening balance 4,348,759 5,801,376

2,650,000     48,339         

Disposals (683,473)       (221,653)      

Losses arising from changes in  fair value of shares (928,085)       (1,279,303)   

5,387,212 4,348,759

Additions during the year 

The investment in equity comprise the following investments in listed entities on the Lusaka Securities

Exchange:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2020

UNIT TRUST

Opening 

shares

Opening 

Market 

value 

shares

Closing 

shares

Closing share 

price

Closing 

Market Value 

Value

BATA SHOE  COMPANY 97,250    257,713 1,097,250  2.6000 2,852,850

COPPERBELT ENERGY COMPANY PLC 454,370   599,768 52,470       1.1000 57,717

546,974   103,925 -            -                -              

FIRST QUANTUM MINES 69,554    257,350 69,554       3.7000 257,350

STANDARD CHARTERED BANK PLC 633,767 1,039,378 633,767     1.4000 887,274

SHOPRITE HOLDINGS PLC 3,000      189,000 3,000         63.0000 189,000

ZAMBIAN BREWERIES PLC 93,067    743,605 93,067       7.2300 672,874

METAL FABRICATORS OF ZAMBIA 10,636    51,053 10,636       4.7800 50,840

ZAMBIA NATIONAL COMMERCIAL BANK PLC 536,335   386,161 123,535     0.4700 58,061

ZAMBEEF 178,571   178,571 178,571     1.1000 196,428

MADISON FINANCIAL SERVICES PLC 47,925    143,775 47,925       2.8800 138,024

68,700    398,460 68,700       0.3900 26,793

2,740,149 4,348,759 2,378,475  5,387,212

8. Cash and bank K

Atlasmara Bank 5,662,406 1,731,602

Barclays 131,073 64,776

Stanbic Bank 73,587 142,308

5,867,065 1,938,686

9. Accounts receivable

Sundry receivables 1,388,473 947,184

10. Accounts payables 

Provision for Management fees 1,178,491 1,202,095

Provision for Trustee fees 62,544 50,994

Provision for Audit fees 60,311 44,834

Other liabilities 66,357 106,398

Provision for Collectice Investment Scheme levy 52,120 30,090

Provision for custodian fees 31,295 17,674

1,451,118 1,452,085

11. Deferred income

20,027,603 12,710

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS ZAMBIA

 CEC AFRICA INVESTMENT LTD 

Deffered income is unearned accrued income on investments in Government Bonds that are being

amortised over the  tenor of the investment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  (Continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2020

12. Going Concern

13. Financial instruments management

Financial risk management

Accounts payables principally comprise of amounts outstanding in respect of Trustee, Management, Audit

fees as well as amounts accrued in respect of operating costs.

The nature of the unit portfolios are determined by the trust deed. Unit portfolios are firstly classified in 

terms of an individual investor risk profile and investment objective as well as the size of their investment.  

The nature of a Fund is determined by the Fund’s objective and investment policy, both of which dictate 

the nature of the underlying investments the fund holds and its risk profile.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes the continuity of 

normal business activity and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the normal course 

of business.

The Securities Exchange Commission (SEC) gives initial approval for each Unit Trust and reviews 

compliance of the Management of the Unity Trust at least annually. Daily checks are performed by the 

independent trustee/custodian as well as the compliance functions of the Fund Managers (if any), further, 

each appointed fund manager ensures compliance with investment policies and limitations specified in the 

respective Trust Deeds and the regulations determined under the Securities Act.

Each Unit Trust is also governed by a Trust Deed, which commits it to a specific investment objective. The 

Trust Deed’s investment objective is further refined into an investment policy which requires the fund 

manager to manage the Unit Trust in accordance with the specified policy. As far as possible, compliance 

limits are built into the daily pricing systems and processes of the fund managers and are checked and 

reported on at least annually.

Financial risk is limited firstly by the regulatory environment. The Securities Act of Zambia has strict and 

specific regulations as to what instruments may and may not be held by the unit trust funds.

Each fund operated by the Unit Trust is exposed to a mix of financial risks resulting predominantly from 

the instruments in which they invest into.

On the basis of cash flow information prepared by the Fund Managers and after consultation with the 

Trustees, the Fund Managers consider that ABC Unit Trust will continue to operate for the foreseeable 

future within the available financial resources. Accordingly, the Fund Managers are of the opinion that the 

preparation of these financial statements on the going concern basis is appropriate.
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for the year ended 31 December 2020

13. Financial instruments management (continued)

Retail investor 

h

h

h

h

h

h

The fund has a portfolio of carefully selected stocks on the Lusaka Securities Exchange. By investing in

this fund, investors stand to benefit from capital gains as well as from the dividend’s payments from

the entities that ABC Unit Trust would have invested in. 

ABC Money Makert fund: This fund aims at investing in the shorter dated securities on the market

such as fixed income and debt securities including bonds and treasury bills, commercial papers,

certificates of deposits, fixed deposits etc. 

By investing in this fund, investors stand to benefit from competitive market returns on a portfolio of

security placements invested in selected fixed deposits and Treasury bills. Hence, the fund allows

investors have easy access to their funds over their investment period whilst enjoying higher rates of

return.

ABC Gratuity funds: The primary performance objective of the portfolio is to draw a balance between

achieving a high level of correct income as is consistent with capital preservations and liquidity as well

as long term fixed income investments. The fund mainly aims to achieve the primary performance

objective by investing in both shorter and longer dated fixed income and money market instruments.

The fund invests principally in cash, Treasury Bills, Government Bonds, Corporate bonds as well as 364

deposits and money-market instruments. The fund has a maximum weighted duration of 90 days. 

ABC balanced fund: The Balanced fund aims at 100% fixed Income instruments (GRZ and Corporate

Bonds, T-bills, and Debentures). 

The focus of this fund is to seek placements in longer dated placements. By placing funds in long term

securities, the balanced fund creates a stable growth of investments at higher

market rates.  

ABC US Dollar funds: The primary performance goal for the ABC US Dollar fund is to provide the

investor with consistent foreign income which is higher than deposits in United States Dollar trading

banks. The fund invests mainly in US dollar-denominated interest-bearing securities. 

ABC US Dollar High Yield funds: The primary performance objective of this portfolio is to mirror the 

364 Libor Rate +250 basis points. The fund invests primarily in long term USD Denominated placements 

with a minimum maturity of 364 days. It allows only one redemption every after 12 months. 

ABC equity fund: Investments are made primarily in shares and other equity instruments. The fund

aims to earn a higher risk adjusted return.
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for the year ended 31 December 2020

h

The fund aims at attracting high value investors with minimum investments amount of K500,000. The 

fund will aim to hold 0% of cash holding. 

ABC ZMW High Yield funds: The primary performance objective of this portfolio is to mirror the 365 

days T-Bill or the long-term bond yield curve by locking funds in long term buckets whilst limiting 

redemption to only once every year after 12 months.

The Funds are exposed to financial risk through their financial assets and financial liabilities. In 

particular the key financial risk is that the proceeds from financial assets are not sufficient to fund the 

obligations arising from the redemption of units. The most significant components of financial risk are 

interest rate risk, liquidity risk, market risk and currency risk.
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13. Financial instruments management (continued)

The Unit Trust  holds the following financial instruments: 

Financial assets Notes 

 

Derivatives 

used for 

hedging  

 Financial 

assets at 

amortised cost 
Total 

2020 K K K K K

6 -                  -                     -                
169,498,824   169,498,824

7 -                  5,387,212      -                  -                      5,387,212       

9 -                  1,388,473      -                -                      1,388,473       

8 -                  5,867,065      -                -                      5,867,065       

12,642,750    -                169,498,824   182,141,574   

Financial assets Notes 

 

Derivatives 

used for 

hedging  

 Financial 

assets at 

amortised cost Total 

2019 K K K K K

6

-                  -                     -                
129,347,901 129,347,901

7

-                  4,348,770       -                  -                      4,348,770         

9
-                  947,184          -                -                      947,184            

8
-                  1,938,686       -                -                      1,938,686         

7,234,640       -                129,347,901     136,582,541     

 

Derivatives 

used for 

hedging  

 Financial 

liabilities at 

amortised cost Total 

K K K K

2020

Deferred income 20,027,603     20,027,603     

-                 -            1,451,118       1,451,118       

-                 -              21,478,721     21,478,721     

2019

Deferred income 12,710             12,710             

-                 -            1,452,085         1,452,085         

-                 -              1,464,795         1,464,795         

Accounts payable 10

Financial assets at 

fair value through 

profit/ loss

Receivables

Cash and cash 

equivalents 

-                

Financial liabilities Notes 

11

Derivatives at 

fair value 

Accounts payable 10

Held to maturity 

investments 

Assets at 

FVTOCI Assets at FVTPL

Held to maturity 

investments 

Financial assets at 

fair value through 

profit/ loss

Receivables

Cash and cash 

equivalents 

-                

Assets at 

FVTOCI Assets at FVTPL
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13. Financial instruments management (continued)

Financial risk management  (continued)

Fair value hierarchy 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets K K K K

-                     -                169,498,824 169,498,824

5,387,212      -                -                      5,387,212       

5,387,212      -                169,498,824   174,886,036   

Financial liabilities 

   Deferred income 20,027,603 20,027,603
Accounts payable -                     -                1,451,118              1,451,118 

-                     -                21,478,721     21,478,721     

Fair value hierarchy 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets K K K K

-                     -                129,347,901 129,347,901

4,348,770       -                -                               4,348,770 

4,348,770       -                129,347,901     133,696,671     

Financial liabilities 

   Deferred income 12,710 12,710

Accounts payable -                     -                1,452,085                  1,452,085 

-                     -                1,464,795         1,464,795         

Financial assets at fair value through profit/ 

loss

Held to maturity 

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial

instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To provide an indication

about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Unit Trust has classified its financial

instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standards, as explained below:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and

trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-

counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data

and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an

instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.  

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included

in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities. 

as at 31 December 2020

Held to maturity 

Financial assets at fair value through profit/ 

loss

as at 31 December 2019
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13. Financial instruments management (continued)

Financial risk management  (continued)

14. CONTIGENT LIABILITIES

15. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

16. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Unit Trust ’s risk management is carried out by the Fund Managers under policies approved by the Unit Trust.

The Fund Manager identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Unit Trust ’s

operating units. The Fund Manager provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies

covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial

instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity. 

There are no other known material contingent liabilities at  31 December 2020 (2019:Nill).

There were no capital commitments as at 31 December 2020 (2019:Nill).

There are no events subsequent to the reporting date that may require disclosure in or adjustment to the financial

statements.

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other

liabilities 

Rolling cashflow forecasts Availability of committed credit

lines and borrowing facilities 

Credit risk Cash and cash

equivalents, trade

receivables, available-for-

sale debt instruments

and held-to-maturity

investments 

Aging analysis Credit ratings Diversification of bank deposits,

credit limits for customers and

credit worthiness checks. 

Foreign currency

exchange rate risk 

Future commercial

transactions, recognized

financial assets and

liabilities denominated in

foreign currency. 

Cash flow forecasting &

sensitivity analysis 

Monitoring of the exchange rates

and making payments during

periods of a favourable exchange

rate. 

Interest rate risk Long term borrowings at

variable rates 

Sensitivity analysis None at the moment 

This note explains the Unit Trust ’s exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the Unit Trusts'

future financial performance.  Below are the risks the Unit Trust  is exposed to:

Risk Risk arising from Measurement Management 
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APPENDIX I - DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES 

for the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019

ZMW ZMW

Management fees 3,874,203 3,990,286             

Adminstrative expenses

Withholding Tax 2,204,036        682,206                

Credit losses 674,170           587,852                

CIS Levy 182,252           186,926                

Audit Fees 120,000           202,814                

AGM Expenses 63,853             56,963                 

Other expenses 35,504             527,717                

Bank Charges 11,680             15,048                 

Redemption Charges 8,591               35,312                 

3,300,086        2,294,838             

Trustee fees 219,748           213,454                

Custody fees 257,047           213,105                
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
 

African Banking Corporation Unit Trusts

Notice is hereby given for the 10  Annual General Meeting (AGM) of African Banking Corporation 

Unit Trusts to be held on 25th March 2021 via Zoom, in Lusaka starting at 09:00 hours.  

 

Meeting ID: 917 8540 9174   Passcode: qd7U8L 
 

The Agenda will be as follows: - 
 

1. Chairman’s Statement 

2. Consideration and Adoption of Minutes of the 9th AGM and Matters Arising 

3. Report from the Fund Manger 

4. Adoption of Audited Financial Statements for years ending 31st December 2020 

5. Re-appointment of Auditors 

6. Any Other Business 

To transact any other business that may properly be transacted at the Annual General 

Meeting. 
 

A Unit Holder entitled to attend is eligible to appoint a proxy to attend, speak, and vote on his / 

her behalf. The proxy need not be a Unit Holder.  

 

Proxy forms are available at Atlas Mara Head Office, Ground Floor, Atlas Mara House, Corner 

Church/Nasser Roads, Ridgeway, Lusaka. These proxy forms must be lodged no less than 48 

hours prior to the appointed time of the AGM. 

 

ABC Asset Management, 

For/On behalf of the Trustees 

AMG Global Trust Limited 

  

Asset
Management

 

 

African banking Corpora�on Investment Services Limited   Licensed Dealer 

 

 

 

 

th

 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2020 
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 PROXY FORM

 

Atlas Mara Head Office, 

Ground Floor, Atlas Mara House, Corner Church/Nasser Roads, Ridgeway, P.O. Box 37107,  Lusaka, Zambia.   

t: +260 211 257 970-6, w: www.atlasmarazambia.com 

 

African Banking Corporation Investment Services Limited T/A ABC Asset Management (Licensed Dealer)  

 

 

 
I/We 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
(NAME (S) IN BLOCK LETTERS) 
 
Being a holder of units in the ABC Asset Management do hereby appoint: 
 
1…………………………………………………………………………………………………or failing him/her; 
 
2. …………………………………………………………………………………………….…or failing him/her;  
 
3. The Chairman of the Annual General Meeting;  
 
As my/our proxy to act for me/us at the 9th Annual General Meeting of ABC Asset 
Management to be held on Thursday 19   March 2021 at Intercontinental Hotel, Lusaka atth

 

09:00 hours.
 
 
SIGNED AT …………………………………… ON ………………………………………………………2021 
 
 
SIGNATURE …………………………………… ASSISTED BY ……………………………………………….. 
                                                      (Where applicable) 
 
             
 
 
 
 
 
Note: 
 

1. Each Unit holder is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak and 
vote in place of the Unit Holder at the Annual General Meeting. 

2. The Proxy Form should be completed and returned not later than 48 hours 
before the meeting. 
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P.O. Box 37107,
Lusaka,
Zambia.

Atlas Mara House, Ground Floor,
Corner of Nassar/Church Roads,
Lusaka, Zambia.

Stanbic Bank Zambia Limited

Atlas Mara

ABSA

Stanbic Nominees

HLB Zambia

2   Floor Saturina House

Plot 6392 Dunduza Chishidza Road

Longacres

P.O Box 32232

Lusaka

AMG Global Trust Limited

Plot No. 6 Lagos Road,

Rhodes Park,

Lusaka.

ABC Investment Services Limited

Collective Investment scheme which invests Unit Holders Funds
in financial instruments for the benefit of the Unit Holders.

Zambia
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